

Adaptec Host Bus Adapter 1000 Series Command Line Utility User's Guide

PMC-2152156

Released

Issue 4: December 2015



Copyright © 2015 PMC-Sierra, Inc. All rights reserved.

The information in this document is proprietary and confidential to PMC-Sierra, Inc. In any event, no part of this document may be reproduced or redistributed in any form without the express written consent of PMC-Sierra, Inc.

PMC-2152156, Issue 4

None of the information contained in this document constitutes an express or implied warranty by PMC-Sierra, Inc. as to the sufficiency, fitness or suitability for a particular purpose of any such information or the fitness, or suitability for a particular purpose, merchantability, performance, compatibility with other parts or systems, of any of the products of PMC-Sierra, Inc., or any portion thereof, referred to in this document. PMC-Sierra, Inc. expressly disclaims all representations and warranties of any kind regarding the contents or use of the information, including, but not limited to, express and implied warranties of accuracy, completeness, merchantability, fitness for a particular use, or non-infringement.

In no event will PMC-Sierra, Inc. be liable for any direct, indirect, special, incidental or consequential damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits, lost business or lost data resulting from any use of or reliance upon the information, whether or not PMC-Sierra, Inc. has been advised of the possibility of such damage.

For a complete list of PMC-Sierra's trademarks and registered trademarks, visit: http://www.pmc-sierra.com/legal/.

Other product and company names mentioned herein may be the trademarks of their respective owners.



Revision History

Issue	Issue Date	Details of Change
1-3	Aug/Sept/Oct 2015	Pre-production releases.
4	December 2015	Production release.



Contents

PMC Adaptec Product Support	6
Software License Agreement	7
1 Getting Started with the Command Line Utility	10
Installing the Command Line Utility	
Downloading the Installation Packages	
Starting the Command Line Utility	10
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
2 Using the Command Line Utility	11
ARCCONF Commands	
arcconf atapassword	12
arcconf driverupdate	12
arcconf expanderlist	13
arcconf expanderupgrade	13
arcconf getconfig	14
arcconf getlogs	14
arcconf getsmartstats	16
arcconf getversion	16
arcconf identify	17
arcconf imageupdate	17
arcconf key	18
arcconf list	18
arcconf phyerrorlog	19
arcconf rescan	19
arcconf resetstatisticscounters	20
arcconf romupdate	20
arcconf savesupportarchive	21
arcconf setbiosparams	21
arcconf setboot	22
arcconf setcontrollerparam	22
arcconf setstate	
arcconf smp	24
arcconf uartlog	25



List of Tables

Table 1: ARCCONF Batch Environr	ments	1	.1
Table 2: ARCCONF Commands			.1



PMC Adaptec Product Support

If you have questions about installing or using your PMC Adaptec product, check this document first—you will find answers to most of your questions. If you need further assistance, use the support options listed below. To expedite your service, have your computer in front of you.

Note: Please visit the Support section of www.adaptec.com for the most up to date contact information.

Self Help and Support in English

- Visit our Web site at www.adaptec.com.
- Search the Adaptec Support Knowledgebase (ASK) at ask.adaptec.com for articles, troubleshooting tips, and frequently asked questions for your product.
- For support via e-mail, submit your question at ask.adaptec.com.
- To contact Technical Support, visit our product support site at start.adaptec.com and click on "Contact Support" for options.

Technische Informationen und Support in Deutsch

- Besuchen Sie unsere Webseite www.adaptec.com/de-de
- Suchen Sie in der Adaptec Support Knowledgebase (ASK) unter ask-de.adaptec.com nach Artikeln, Tipps zur Fehlerbehebung und häufig gestellten Fragen zu Ihrem Produkt.
- Support per Email erhalten Sie unter ask-de.adaptec.com.
- Um den Technischen Support zu kontaktieren, besuchen Sie uns bitte unter start adaptec.com und klicken Sie auf "Support kontaktieren", für Auswahlmöglichkeiten.

Техническая поддержка и информация на русском языке

- Посещаете наш сайт www.adaptec.com/ru-ru/.
- База знаний Adaptec (ASK) на сайте ask-ru.adaptec.com ask-ru.adaptec.com статьи, советы по устранению неисправностей и часто задаваемые вопросы о Вашем продукте.
- Для поддержки по электронной почте отправьте Ваш запрос на сайте ask-ru.adaptec.com
- Для обращения в службу Технической Поддержки, пожалуйста, посетите наш web сайт start.adaptec.com и используйте ссылку "Contact Support".

日本語での技術情報とサポート

- 弊社のウェブサイト、www.adaptec.com/ja-jp をご覧ください。
- ask.adaptec.co.jp のAdaptec Support Knowledgebase (ASK)で、お使いの製品の情報 トラブルシューティングのヒント、よくある質問を検索してください。
- Eメールでのサポートには ask.adaptec.co.jp から質問を送ってください。
- テクニカルサポートへコンタクトするには、弊社ウェブサイトstart.adaptec.comをご覧になり、"Contact Support"をクリックして下さい。



Software License Agreement

PLEASE READ CAREFULLY: THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE IS SUBJECT TO THE SOFTWARE LICENSE TERMS OF PMC-SIERRA, INC. AND OTHER LICENSORS WHOSE SOFTWARE MAY BE BUNDLED WITH THIS PRODUCT.

BY YOUR USE OF THE SOFTWARE INCLUDED WITH THIS PRODUCT YOU AGREE TO THE LICENSE TERMS REQUIRED BY THE LICENSOR OF THAT SOFTWARE, AS SET FORTH DURING THE INSTALLATION PROCESS. IF YOU DO NOT AGREE TO THE LICENSE TERMS APPLICABLE TO THE SOFTWARE, YOU MAY RETURN THE ENTIRE UNUSED PRODUCT FOR A FULL REFUND.

In return for acquiring a license to use the PMC-Sierra software, which may include software from third party licensors and patches made available by PMC-Sierra ("Software"), and the related documentation, you agree to the following terms and conditions:

- 1. License. This Agreement grants you, the Licensee, a license to:
 - **a.** Use the Software on a single computer system, which is not intended for use by more than five (5) users; and:
 - b. Make one copy of the Software in machine readable form solely for back-up purposes, provided you reproduce PMC-Sierra's copyright proprietary legends. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Software may be used on the home, laptop or other secondary computer of the principal user of the Software, and an additional copy of the Software may be made to support such use. As used in this license, the Software is "in use" when it is either loaded into RAM or installed on a hard disk or other permanent memory device. The Software may be "in use" on only one computer at any given time. (Different license terms and fees are applicable for networked or multiple user applications.) As a specific condition of this license, you agree to use the Software in compliance with all applicable laws, including copyright laws, and that you will not copy, transmit, perform or distribute any audio or other content using the Software without obtaining all necessary licenses or permissions from the owner of the content.
- 2. Restrictions. You may not distribute copies of the Software to others or electronically transfer the Software from one computer to another over a network. You may not post or otherwise make available the Software, or any portion thereof, in any form, on the Internet. You may not use the Software in a computer service business, including in time sharing applications. The Software contains trade secrets and, in order to protect them, you may not decompile, reverse engineer, disassemble, or otherwise reduce the Software to a human-perceivable form. YOU MAY NOT MODIFY, ADAPT, TRANSLATE, RENT, LEASE, LOAN, RESELL FOR PROFIT, DISTRIBUTE, NETWORK OR CREATE DERIVATIVE WORKS BASED UPON THE SOFTWARE OR ANY PART THEREOF.
- **3.** Ownership of Software. As Licensee, you own the media upon which the software is recorded or fixed, but PMC-Sierra and its licensors retain title and ownership of the Software recorded on the original media and all subsequent copies of the Software, regardless of the form or media in which or on which the original and other copies may exist. This license is not a sale of the Software or any copy.
- **4.** Confidentiality. You agree to maintain the Software in confidence and that you will not disclose the Software to any third party without the express written consent of PMC-Sierra. You further agree to take all reasonable precautions to preclude access of unauthorized persons to the Software.
- 5. Term. This license is effective until January 1, 2045, unless terminated earlier. You may terminate the license at any time by destroying the Software (including the related documentation) together with all copies or modifications in any form. PMC-Sierra will have the right to terminate our license immediately if you fail to comply with any term or condition of this Agreement. Upon any termination, including termination by you, you must destroy the Software (including the related documentation), together with all copies or modifications in any form.
- **6.** Special Terms Applicable to Databases. Where a database is included with the Software, you acknowledge that it is licensed only in connection with the use of the Software to perform disc



- creation, and that the database and all data derived therefrom must be maintained in confidence in accordance with the provisions of Section 4. This license does not grant you any rights to distribute or disclose such database or data.
- 7. Limited Warranty. PMC-Sierra and its Licensor warrant only that the media upon which the Software is furnished will be free from defects in material or workmanship under normal use and service for a period of thirty (30) days from the date of delivery to you. PMC-SIERRA AND ITS LICENSORS DO NOT AND CANNOT WARRANT THE PERFORMANCE OR RESULTS YOU MAY OBTAIN BY USING THE SOFTWARE OR DOCUMENTATION. THE FOREGOING STATES THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES PMC-SIERRA AND ITS LICENSORS WILL PROVIDE FOR BREACH OF WARRANTY. EXCEPT FOR THE FOREGOING LIMITED WARRANTY, PMC-SIERRA AND ITS LICENSORS MAKE NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED, AS TO NON-INFRINGEMENT OF THIRD PARTY RIGHTS, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. Some states do not allow the exclusion of implied warranties or limitations on how long an implied warranty may last, so the above limitations may not apply to you. This warranty gives you specific legal rights and you may also have other rights which vary from state to state.
- **8.** The entire liability of PMC-Sierra and its licensors, and your exclusive remedy for a breach of this warranty, shall be:
 - **a.** The replacement of any media not meeting the above limited warranty which is returned to PMC-Sierra; or:
 - **b.** if PMC-Sierra or its distributor is unable to deliver replacement media which is free from defects in materials or workmanship, you may terminate this Agreement by returning the Software and your money will be refunded.
- 9. Limitation of Liability. IN NO EVENT WILL PMC-SIERRA OR ITS LICENSORS BE LIABLE TO YOU FOR ANY INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR INDIRECT DAMAGES, INCLUDING ANY LOST PROFITS, LOST SAVINGS, OR LOSS OF DATA, EVEN IF PMC-SIERRA OR A LICENSOR HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, OR FOR ANY CLAIM BY ANY OTHER PARTY. Some states do not allow the exclusion or limitation of special, incidental, or consequential damages, so the above limitation or exclusion may not apply to you.
- **10.** Export. You acknowledge that the laws and regulations of the United States and other countries may restrict the export and re-export of the Software. You agree that you will not export or re-export the Software or documentation in any form in violation of applicable United States and foreign law.
- 11. Government Restricted Rights. The Software is subject to restricted rights as follows. If the Software is acquired under the terms of a GSA contract: use, reproduction or disclosure is subject to the restrictions set forth in the applicable ADP Schedule contract. If the Software is acquired under the terms of a DoD or civilian agency contract, use, duplication or disclosure by the Government is subject to the restrictions of this Agreement in accordance with 48 C.F.R. 12.212 of the Federal Acquisition Regulations and its successors and 49 C.F.R. 227.7202-1 of the DoD FAR Supplement and its successors.
- 12. General. You acknowledge that you have read this Agreement, understand it, and that by using the Software you agree to be bound by its terms and conditions. You further agree that it is the complete and exclusive statement of the agreement between PMC-Sierra and you, and supersedes any proposal or prior agreement, oral or written, and any other communication between PMC-Sierra and you relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. No additional or any different terms will be enforceable against PMC-Sierra unless PMC-Sierra gives its express consent, including an express waiver of the terms of this Agreement, in writing signed by an officer of PMC-Sierra. You assume full responsibility for the use of the Software and agree to use the Software legally and responsibly. This Agreement shall be governed by California law, except as to copyright matters, which are covered by Federal law. This Agreement is deemed entered into at Sunnyvale, California by both parties. Should any provision of this Agreement be declared unenforceable in any jurisdiction, then such provision shall be deemed severable from this Agreement and shall not affect the remainder hereof. All rights in the Software not specifically granted in this Agreement are reserved by PMC-Sierra.



Should you have any questions concerning this license, contact:

PMC-Sierra, Inc. Legal Department 1380 Bordeaux Drive Sunnyvale, CA 94089 (408) 239-8000



1 Getting Started with the Command Line Utility

This utility allows you to:

- Display configuration settings
- Flash new firmware and BIOS onto the controller
- Enable the controller to check the removal and connection of any disk drives
- Provides access to the status and event logs of a controller

Installing the Command Line Utility

Downloading the Installation Packages

Complete these steps to download the ARCCONF installation package for your operating system(s) from the Adaptec Web site:

- 1. Open a browser window, then type start.adaptec.com in the address bar.
- 2. Enter your product or adapter model number, then select HBA 1000.
- 3. Select Storage Manager Downloads, then select Adaptec ARCCONF Command Line Utility from the list of installers.
- 4. Download the ARCCONF installation package.
- 5. When the download completes, extract the package contents to the installation directory on your machine (Program Files or /opt, for instance).
- **6.** On Linux systems, ensure that arcconf has 'execute' privilege: chmod arcconf.exe +x

Starting the Command Line Utility

1. To start ARCCONF, enter one of the following commands:

where Install_dir is the directory where the utility is installed.

2. To see a list of available commands, type ARCCONF at the prompt. For help with a specific command, type ARCCONF <command_name > help.



2 Using the Command Line Utility

This chapter explains how to use the command line utility interactively or in batch mode. With interactive mode, enter commands at the prompt. In batch mode, create scripts and run the script in the appropriate shell, as described in the table below.

Table 1: ARCCONF Batch Environments

Environment	Batch File	Run Script
Windows	.bat	CMD.EXE
Linux/Unix	.sh	sh / bash

In either mode, if your command fails, you immediately see an error message of Command failed. Other script messages that you can get are Command completed successfully, or Command aborted.

The return values for each command are the same:

 0×00 : SUCCESS

0x01: FAILURE - The requested command failed

 0×02 : ABORT - The command was aborted because parameters failed validation

0x03: INVALID_ARGUMENTS - The arguments are incorrect. (Displays COMMAND help)

To view a list of commands at the command line, type ARCCONF and press Enter.

To access the online help for a specific command, type ARCCONF <command>, then press Enter.

ARCCONF Commands

The following commands are available in ARCCONF for the Adaptec HBA 1000 Series adapter. The commands are described on the following pages, in alphabetical order. In the command descriptions, <> indicates a required parameter and [] indicates an optional parameter.

Table 2: ARCCONF Commands

getsmartstats	phyerrorlog	setboot
getversion	rescan	setcontrollerparam
identify	resetstatisticscounters	setstate
imageupdate	romupdate	smp
key	savesupportarchive	uartlog
list	setbiosparams	
	getversion identify imageupdate key	getversion rescan identify resetstatisticscounters imageupdate romupdate key savesupportarchive

Note: ARCCONF supports additional commands that are not listed in the table above. This guide describes just the commands that are supported by Adaptec HBA 1000 Series adapters. If you attempt to execute any command that is not described in this guide, the firmware returns an error.



arcconf atapassword

Description

Sets or clears the password for SATA drives.

Syntax

```
ARCCONF ATAPASSWORD <Controller#> SET <new password> <Channel# ID#> ...
ARCCONF ATAPASSWORD <Controller#> CLEAR <current password> <Channel# ID#> ...
```

Parameters

new password | current password

New password, current password.

Channel/ID

Lists the space-delimited channel number and device number (ID) pairs for each drive on which to set or clear the password.

Examples

```
ARCCONF ATAPASSWORD 1 SET uR8ryx 0 1 ARCCONF ATAPASSWORD 1 CLEAR uR8ryx 0 1
```

arcconf driverupdate

Description

Updates the Windows device driver for the controller.

Note: This command is available on Windows systems only.

Syntax

ARCCONF DRIVERUPDATE <DirName> [nologs]

Parameters

DirName

Absolute path to directory containing the Windows driver.

Nologs

Optional parameter that suppresses log output.

Examples

ARCCONF DRIVERUPDATE C:\WINDOWSALL



arcconf expanderlist

Description

Returns a list of disk drive expanders on a controller.

Syntax

ARCCONF EXPANDERLIST <Controller#>

Parameters

Controller#

Controller number.

Examples

ARCCONF EXPANDERLIST 1

arcconf expanderupgrade

Description

Allows new firmware to be flashed to an enclosure or expander.

Syntax:

ARCCONF EXPANDERUPGRADE <Controller#> ENCLOSURE <Connector# Channel# ID#> [ChunkSize#] <UpgradeType> <Filename> [Mode#] [noprompt]

Parameters

Controller#

Controller number.

Channel#

Channel number of the device to be updated.

ID#

Device number of the device to be updated.

Connector#

Connector number of the device to be updated.

ChunkSize#

Chunk size, in bytes, to be used to update the firmware. Default is 65536 bytes.

Filename

Name of the firmware update file.

UpgradeType

EXPANDER—update the firmware image on the expander or enclosure

MFG—update the manufacturing image (BOOT SEEPROM) on the expander or enclosure

CPLD—update the CPLD image on the expander or enclosure

Note: MFG and CPLD upgrade types are supported on the Adaptec AEC-82885T expander only.

Mode#

The Mode parameter applies to EXPANDER and MFG upgrade types only. Valid values are:

- 2—download microcode only; requires system reset or power cycle to activate (default)
- 6—download microcode with offsets and activate
- 7—download microcode with offsets, save, and activate



Noprompt

Optional parameter that suppresses alert messages.

Examples

```
arcconf EXPANDERUPGRADE 1 ENCLOSURE 2 0 0 1024 EXPANDER C:\FirmwareImage.bin 7 arcconf EXPANDERUPGRADE 1 ENCLOSURE 2 0 0 512 MFG C:\FirmwareImage.rom 6 arcconf EXPANDERUPGRADE 1 ENCLOSURE 2 0 0 256 CPLD C:\CPLDImage.bin noprompt
```

arcconf getconfig

Description

Lists information about controllers, physical drives, including:

- Controller type, status, World Wide Name (WWN), and mode
- BIOS, boot block, device driver, and firmware versions
- Device type, device ID, presence of PFA
- Physical device state
- Enclosure information: fan, power supply, and temperature status
- Connector/Lane/Phy mapping

Also displays controller BIOS settings if you do not include a device-type keyword.

Syntax

ARCCONF GETCONFIG <Controller#> [AD | PD | AL | CN]

Parameters

Controller#

Controller number

AD/PD/AL...

- AD—Adapter information only
- PD—Physical device information only
- CN—Connector information only
- AL—All information

Examples

```
ARCCONF GETCONFIG 1

Controller BIOS Setting Information

Runtime BIOS
Array BBS Support
Physical Drives Displayed during POST
Backplane Mode
MissingDrvCount

...
```

ARCCONF GETCONFIG 1 CN

arcconf getlogs

Description

Provides access to controller status, event logs, and usage statistics, including:

- · A log of device errors that the controller encountered
- A log that records any occurrences of defunct devices
- A log of special events that may have occurred



- A log of controller usage statistics, including Inter-I/O Read and Write times and I/O Completion Read and Write times
- A log of supported hardware components on the controller

Syntax

```
ARCCONF GETLOGS <Controller#> <Type1> [clear|tabular] [nologs]

ARCCONF GETLOGS <Controller#> <Type2> [tabular] [nologs]

ARCCONF GETLOGS <Controller#> <Type4> <HardwareType#> [nologs]

ARCCONF GETLOGS <Controller#> DEVICE <clear> <ErrorType#> [<Channel# ID#>|ALL]
  [nologs]
```

Parameters

Controller#

Controller number.

Type1

One of the following:

- DEVICE—device error log
- DEAD—dead (failed) drive log
- EVENT—controller évent log

Type2

One of the following:

• STATS—controller statistics data

Type4

One of the following:

- 1. Cache Memory
- 2. NVSRAM

ErrorType

One of the following:

- 1 Parity Error Counter
- 2 Link Failure Counter
- 3 Hardware Error Counter
- 4 Aborted Commands Counter
- 5 Medium Error Counter
- 6 SMART Warning Counter

Clear

Clears the specified log from the controller or a specific error counter for one or all physical drives on a controller.

Channel/ID

Channel and number of the physical device on the controller.

Tabular

Displays the log or statistics in tabular format.

Examples

```
ARCCONF GETLOGS 1 EVENT
ARCCONF GETLOGS 1 STATS tabular
ARCCONF GETLOGS 1 DEVICE clear 3 ALL
```



arcconf getsmartstats

Description

Displays SMART statistics for the hard drives and Solid State Drives (SSDs) on a controller.

Syntax

ARCCONF GETSMARTSTATS <Controller#> [Tabular]

Parameters

Controller#

Controller number.

Tabular

Creates output in tabular format.

Examples

```
ARCCONF GETSMARTSTATS 1
ARCCONF GETSMARTSTATS 1 TABULAR
```

arcconf getversion

Description

Lists version information for all controllers or a specific controller's software components, including information about the BIOS, driver, firmware currently running, and firmware that will run after a reboot.

Syntax

```
ARCCONF GETVERSION ARCCONF GETVERSION <Controller#>
```

Parameters

Controller#

Controller# is the controller number

Examples

ARCCONF GETVERSION ARCCONF GETVERSION 1



arcconf identify

Description

Identifies a physical device by blinking its LEDs.

Syntax

ARCCONF IDENTIFY <Controller#> DEVICE <Channel# ID#> [TIME <BlinkTime>] [nologs]

Parameters

Controller#

Controller number

Channel# ID#

Channel number and ID number for the physical device(s) to be identified

TIME <BlinkTime>

Time, in seconds, for the LEDs to continue blinking

Examples

ARCCONF IDENTIFY 1 DEVICE 0 0

arcconf imageupdate

Description

Allows new firmware to be flashed to the hard drive.

Syntax:

ARCCONF IMAGEUPDATE <Controller#> DEVICE <Channel# ID# ChunkSize# Filename> [Mode#] [BufferID#] [noprompt]

Parameters

Controller#

Controller number.

Channel#

Channel number of the device to be updated.

ID#

Device number of the device to be updated.

ChunkSize#

Chunk size, in bytes, to be used to update the firmware.

Note: For SATA drives, the chunk size must be a multiple of 512.

Filename

Name of the firmware update file.

Mode#

Firmware update mode. Valid values for physical drives are:

- 3-(SATA) Download with offsets and save image for immediate and future use
- 7-(SAS) Download microcode with offsets, save, and activate

BufferID#

Mandatory for tape drive firmware update.



Noprompt

Optional parameter that suppresses alert messages.

Examples

ARCCONF IMAGEUPDATE 1 DEVICE 0 0 16384 ados.lod 3

arcconf key

Description

Loads a feature key onto an Adaptec controller.

Syntax

ARCCONF KEY <Controller#> SET <Key#>

Parameters

Controller#

The controller number.

Key#

The key number provided by PMC.

Examples

ARCCONF KEY 1 SET ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWX

arcconf list

Description

Lists all controllers in the system or the configuration of a specific controller.

Syntax

ARCCONF LIST [Controller#]

Parameters

Controller#

The controller number.

Examples

ARCCONF LIST ARCCONF LIST 1



arcconf phyerrorlog

Description

Displays PHY error logs for physical devices on a controller.

Syntax

```
ARCCONF PHYERRORLOG <Controller#> DEVICE <Channel# ID#> ARCCONF PHYERRORLOG <Controller#> DEVICE ALL
```

Parameters

Controller#

Controller number.

Channel/ID

Channel and number of the physical device on the controller.

ALI

Displays PHY error log for all physical devices.

Examples

```
ARCCONF PHYERRORLOG 1 DEVICE 0 0 ARCCONF PHYERRORLOG 1 DEVICE ALL
```

arcconf rescan

Description

Enables the controller to check for the removal of any disk drives and to check for the connection of any new disk drives to the controller. Controller rescan runs in the background, asynchronously. When rescan is started, a message is displayed stating that the process is running in the background and may take 10 minutes to complete. Another message is displayed if a rescan is started while one is already in progress.

Syntax

```
ARCCONF RESCAN <controller#> [nologs]
ARCCONF RESCAN ALL [nologs]
```

Parameters

Controller#

The controller number

ALL

Rescans all controllers in the system

Examples

```
ARCCONF RESCAN 1
ARCCONF RESCAN ALL
```



arcconf resetstatisticscounters

Description

Resets statistics counters for a controller and the logical and physical devices attached to it. Use this command to clear the counters and create fresh statistics, including (but not limited to):

- Read/Write Request Count
- Sectors Read/Written/Flushed
- Unaligned Reads/Writes
- Avg/Max Request Latency
- Max Queue Depth
- Max Request Latency
- Avg Dirty Cache Lines
- Avg Free Processor Ram
- Avg Locked Stripes
- Command Count

Syntax

ARCCONF RESETSTATISTICSCOUNTERS <Controller#>

Parameters

Controller#

The controller number

Examples

ARCCONF RESETSTATISTICSCOUNTERS 1

arcconf romupdate

Description

Allows new firmware and BIOS to be flashed to the controller. A reboot is required for the new firmware to take effect.

Note:

- 1. This command is supported in Windows and Linux only.
- You can download the .bin update files from the Support area on the Adaptec Web site at www.adaptec.com.

Syntax

ARCCONF ROMUPDATE <Controller#> <BaseName> [newversion <build#> [force]] [noprompt] [nologs]



Parameters

Controller#

The controller number.

BaseName

Absolute path to the controller image file.

Newversion <build#>

Specifies the version of the firmware build.

Force

An optional parameter used to force a down-level firmware update. Valid only if Newversion parameter is specified.

Noprompt

An optional parameter that suppresses the confirmation prompt.

Examples

```
ARCCONF ROMUPDATE 1 /usr/home/AC220001.BIN ARCCONF ROMUPDATE 1 C:\firmwareImage\as483c.bin newversion 12345 force noprompt
```

arcconf savesupportarchive

Description

Saves configuration and status information to help diagnose a problem with your system. Saved information includes device logs, drive logs, event logs, error logs, controller logs, history logs, basecode logs, and SSD SMART statistics.

By default, the log files are saved in the Support folder in the standard logs directory for your operating system (/var/log for Linux, and so on).

Syntax

ARCCONF SAVESUPPORTARCHIVE [Path] [Firmware | Arcconf | Storlib | Basecode]

Parameters

Path

Path to store the log files.

Log type:

One of these log files:

- Firmware: saves Firmware logs
- Arcconf: saves Arcconf logs
- Storlib: saves StorLib logs
- Basecode: saves basecode logs

Examples

```
ARCCONF SAVESUPPORTARCHIVE Firmware
```

arcconf setbiosparams

Description

Changes select BIOS settings



Syntax

ARCCONF SETBIOSPARAMS <Controller#> POSTPROMPTTIMEOUT <timeout>

Parameters

Controller#

Controller number

Subfunction

Option	Description
POSTPROMPTTIMEOUT <timeout></timeout>	Changes the F1/F2 POST prompt timeout for the controller during system boot. Timeout can have a value between 1-255.

Examples

ARCCONF SETBIOSPARAMS 1 POSTPROMPTTIMECOUNT 10

arcconf setboot

Description

Sets the controller as a boot device for the system. This command is available only when the controller is offline.

Syntax

ARCCONF SETBOOT <Controller#> DEVICE <Channel# ID#> TYPE <Boot Type> [nologs] ARCCONF SETBOOT <Controller#> ENABLE

Parameters

Controller#

Controller number

Channel# ID#

Channel and ID of the physical device to mark as the boot device

TYPE <Boot Type>

Boot type:

- Primary Primary boot device
- Secondary Secondary boot device
- None Non-bootable

ENABLE

Sets the controller as a boot controller

Examples

```
ARCCONF SETBOOT 1 DEVICE 0 5 TYPE secondary ARCCONF SETBOOT 1 ENABLE
```

arcconf setcontrollerparam

Description

Changes a parameter of a controller.



Syntax

```
ARCCONF SETCONTROLLERPARAM <Controller#> QUEUEDEPTH <QDepth> [nologs]
ARCCONF SETCONTROLLERPARAM <Controller#> ELEVATORSORT <Enable | Disable>
[nologs]
ARCCONF SETCONTROLLERPARAM <Controller#> LATENCY <Latency> [nologs]
```

Parameters

Controller#

Controller number

QUEUEDEPTH < QDepth>

Sets the queue depth for the controller. Valid values are 0, 2, 4, 8, 16, and 32. A value of 0 indicates automatic queue depth.

ELEVATORSORT

Sets the behavior of the controller cache write Elevator sort algorithm.

LATENCY

Sets the flexible latency scheduler. Valid values are:

- 0 : Disable (default).
- 1: Low. Sets value to 250.
- 2: Medium. Sets value to 100.
- 3: High. Sets value to 50.
- 4: Aggressive level 1. Sets value to 30.
- 5: Aggressive level 2. Sets value to 10.

Examples

```
ARCCONF SETCONTROLLERPARAM 1 QUEUEDEPTH 16

ARCCONF SETCONTROLLERPARAM 1 ELAVATORSORT disable
ARCCONF SETCONTROLLERPARAM 1 LATENCY 2
```

arcconf setstate

Description

Changes the state of a physical device to the designated state.

Syntax

ARCCONF SETSTATE <Controller#> DEVICE <Channel#> <Device#> <State> [noprompt]

Parameters

Controller#

The controller number

Channel#

The channel number for the drive.

Device#

Device number for the device.

State

- RDY—Attempts to change a drive from Failed to Ready.
- DDD—Force a drive offline (to Failed).
- · EED—Enable the erased drive.

Noprompt:

No prompt for confirmation.



Examples

```
ARCCONF SETSTATE 1 DEVICE 0 0 DDD ARCCONF SETSTATE 1 DEVICE 0 0 RDY
```

arcconf smp

Description

Sends a SAS Management Protocol (SMP) function request to a SMP target device.

Syntax:

```
ARCCONF SMP <Controller#> Enclosure <Connector# Channel# Device#> Expander <Expander#> <CommandType1> [ASCII]

ARCCONF SMP <Controller#> Enclosure <Connector# Channel# Device#> Expander <Expander#> <CommandType2 PHY#> [ASCII]
```

Parameters

Controller#

Controller number.

Connector# Channel# ID#

Connector ID, Channel ID and Device ID of the enclosure that contains the expander.

Expander#

Expander number on the controller (SMP target device).

PHY#

The PHY Identifier (valid only for for Discover and PHY Error Log Request).

CommandType#

CommandType1:

- RGR Report General Request
- RMR Report Manufacturer Request

CommandType2:

- DR Discover Request
- RPELR Report PHY Error Log Request

ASCII

Displays the SMP response in ASCII format along with Hex formatted output.

Examples

```
ARCCONF SMP 1 Enclosure 1 2 0 Expander 0 RGR ARCCONF SMP 1 Enclosure 1 2 0 Expander 1 DR 0
```



arcconf uartlog

Description

Starts a console for UART command execution.

Syntax

ARCCONF UARTLOG <Controller#> CONSOLE [noprompt] [nologs]

Parameters

Controller#

Controller number

CONSOLE

Starts an interactive UART console to run commands. Enter commands one line at a time. Type "exit" to stop.

Noprompt:

No prompt for confirmation.

Example

ARCCONF UARTLOG 1 CONSOLE



PMC-Sierra, Inc. 1380 Bordeaux Drive Sunnyvale, CA 94089 USA

© Copyright PMC-Sierra, Inc. 2015 All rights reserved. PMC logo is a trademark of PMC-Sierra, Inc.

Document Number: PMC-2152156